
        

TO:  James L. App, City Manager 
 
FROM: Doug Monn, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: 21st Street Reservoir Maintenance 
 
DATE:  March 15, 2011 
 
 
NEEDS: For the City Council to consider awarding a contract to Crosno Construction Inc. for repair 

work on the 21St Street Reservoir.   
 
FACTS:   

1. The 21st Street Reservoir provides potable water storage for all portions of the City 
west of the Salinas River. 

 
2. The structure was constructed in 1928. The reservoir roof was added in the 1950s.  

 
3. After eighty years of use, the reservoir is at the end of its life span. 

 
4. The expected cost to replace the reservoir in 2003 was $5.5M. 

 
5. Reservoir replacement has been delayed as a result of ongoing budget challenges. 

 
6. The current construction cost estimate for replacing the existing reservoir is $7M. 

 
7. A recent dive inspection revealed high-rate corrosion on steel support columns in 

the tank.  The corrosion has considerably degraded the integrity of the structure. 
 

8. Recoating of the steel columns to prevent further corrosion could lengthen their 
useful life at modest cost.  

 
 
ANALYSIS &  
CONCLUSION:  
  The reservoir roof trusses are supported by a concrete stem wall, concrete columns, and 

sixteen steel columns.  The roof and supporting steel columns are in poor condition 
requiring substantial ongoing maintenance. 

 
  Replacement of the 21st Reservoir is a top priority.  If the currently proposed water rates 

are implemented January 1, 2012 the construction of a replacement reservoir may begin 
as early as 2013.   

 
Steel column coating repair work is recommended to prevent further degradation until 
the reservoir can be replaced.  The scope of work includes sandblasting to remove the 
original coal tar coating, surface preparation and recoating with a National Sanitation 
Foundation (NSF) approved coating system. It is important that work commence as 
quickly as possible to allow time for the reservoir to be serviced, filled, and tested prior 
to onset of peak season beginning April/May 2011. 
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Abrasive blasting and recoating bids were sought to complete the repairs. The following 
firms submitted bids: 

  
1) Crosno Construction Inc. 

  2) West Coast Industrial Coatings 
 3) American Coatings 
 
 Crosno Construction Inc. was the lowest qualified bidder.  Based on the bid and 

demonstrated experience it is staff’s recommendation that they be retained to perform 
the necessary repair work.  

 
 Depending on weather conditions it may be necessary to dehumidify the reservoir to 

allow coatings to properly cure.  The need for dehumidification will be dictated by 
conditions at the time of application. Therefore, is should be included as a contingency 
item rather then part of the contract to avoid having to negotiate a deductive cost from 
the contractor if dehumidification is unnecessary.   

  
 
POLICY 
REFERENCE: California Code of Regulations, Title 22 /D.4/Ch 16 
 
FISCAL 
IMPACT: $40,300 From the water operations fund: 
   
  Bid Amount    $21,700 
  Contingency    
   Dehumidification  $15,000 
   10% Misc   $  3,600 
     Total     $40,300  
   
   
OPTIONS:        A.  That the City Council Adopt Resolution No. 11-xx authorizing the City 

Manager to enter into a contract with Crosno Construction Inc. for repair work 
on the 21st Street Reservoir for a lump sum of $21,700 and a contingency of 
$18,600 for dehumidification and other as needed to complete the work. 

 
 B.  Amend, modify or reject the above option. 
 
Prepared by: Christopher Alakel, Water Resources Manager 
 
Attachments:  (2) 

1) Quotation  
2) Resolution 
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RESOLUTION NO. 11-xxx 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PASO ROBLES 
AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR MAINTENANCE OF 21ST STREET RESERVOIR  

 
 
WHEREAS, the 21st Street Reservoir is critical component of the City’s water distribution system; 
 
WHEREAS, the Reservoir must be serviced, filled, and tested prior to commencement of peak season; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, this work will prevent further decay of the steel structural elements until the reservoir is 
replaced. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The City Council of the City of El Paso de Robles does hereby appropriate $39,600 from 
Water Operations Fund to Budget Account No. 600-310-5221-165.  
 
SECTION 2.  The City Council of the City of El Paso de Robles does hereby authorize awarding a 
contract to Crosno Construction Inc in an amount not to exceed $39,600. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Paso Robles this 15th day of March 2011 
by the following votes: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSTAIN:   
ABSENT:  
 
   
  Duane Picanco, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

  

Caryn Jackson, Deputy City Clerk   
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